
AGENDA
Regular Drainage Meeting 

 Wednesday, March 23, 2022, 9:30 A.M.
This meeting will be held electronically and in-person.

 To access the meeting call: 1-(312)-626-6799, when prompted enter meeting
            ID code: 820 7567 2007

 You can also access the meeting online at:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82075672007

Open Meeting

Approve Agenda

Approve Minutes

03-03-2022 DRAINAGE CONTRACTOR MEETING MINUTES.PDF

Approve Claims For Payment 

PAYABLES-DRAINAGE PUBLICATION 03-25-22.PDF

DD 52 - Discuss W Possible Action - Honey Creek Land Improvement Update

Discuss W Possible Action - DD 56 Change Order # 2

DD 56 6830 2 - CONTRACTOR AND ENGR SIGNED.PDF

Discuss W Possible Action - Request From Heart Of Iowa To Waive Inspection Fee

HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT REQUEST TO WAIVE FEE 3-16-22.PDF

DD 119 - Discuss W Possible Action - Heart Of Iowa Utility Permit Application

2022-05 HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT DD 119.PDF

DD 136 - Discuss W Possible Action - Heart Of Iowa Utility Permit Application 

2022-05 HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT DD 136.PDF

DD 114 - Discuss W Possible Action - Outstanding Warrant

Discuss W Possible Action - Invoice Drainage Utility Permit Review 

INVOICE - DRAINAGE UTILITY PERMIT LANGUAGE REVIEW.PDF

Discuss W Possible Action - New Work Order Requests 

DD Big 4 Main WO 326 - Landowner Mike Inks reports a beaver dam nearing completion 

on parcel #892233300002. Dam is roughly 600 yards North of HWY D25 Bridge. 

According to Mike, there is a lot of beaver activity in the area. 

DD BIG 4 MAIN WO326 - BEAVER DAM 33-89-22.PDF
BIG 4 MAIN WO326 - BEAVER DAM MAP 33-89-22.PDF

Other Business

Adjourn Meeting

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

Documents:

9.

Documents:

10.

11.

Documents:

12.

Documents:

13.

14.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82075672007


AGENDA
Regular Drainage Meeting 

 Wednesday, March 23, 2022, 9:30 A.M.
This meeting will be held electronically and in-person.

 To access the meeting call: 1-(312)-626-6799, when prompted enter meeting
            ID code: 820 7567 2007

 You can also access the meeting online at:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82075672007

Open Meeting

Approve Agenda

Approve Minutes

03-03-2022 DRAINAGE CONTRACTOR MEETING MINUTES.PDF

Approve Claims For Payment 

PAYABLES-DRAINAGE PUBLICATION 03-25-22.PDF

DD 52 - Discuss W Possible Action - Honey Creek Land Improvement Update

Discuss W Possible Action - DD 56 Change Order # 2

DD 56 6830 2 - CONTRACTOR AND ENGR SIGNED.PDF

Discuss W Possible Action - Request From Heart Of Iowa To Waive Inspection Fee

HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT REQUEST TO WAIVE FEE 3-16-22.PDF

DD 119 - Discuss W Possible Action - Heart Of Iowa Utility Permit Application

2022-05 HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT DD 119.PDF

DD 136 - Discuss W Possible Action - Heart Of Iowa Utility Permit Application 

2022-05 HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT DD 136.PDF

DD 114 - Discuss W Possible Action - Outstanding Warrant

Discuss W Possible Action - Invoice Drainage Utility Permit Review 

INVOICE - DRAINAGE UTILITY PERMIT LANGUAGE REVIEW.PDF

Discuss W Possible Action - New Work Order Requests 

DD Big 4 Main WO 326 - Landowner Mike Inks reports a beaver dam nearing completion 

on parcel #892233300002. Dam is roughly 600 yards North of HWY D25 Bridge. 

According to Mike, there is a lot of beaver activity in the area. 

DD BIG 4 MAIN WO326 - BEAVER DAM 33-89-22.PDF
BIG 4 MAIN WO326 - BEAVER DAM MAP 33-89-22.PDF

Other Business

Adjourn Meeting

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

Documents:

9.

Documents:

10.

11.

Documents:

12.

Documents:

13.

14.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/2e047b9b-3c18-43dc-8f32-40cacc893c06












3/22/2022 10:01:01 AM Page 1 of 1

0.00

38.88

Total Regular Payables:

Total Stamped Warrants:

Hardin County
Drainage Claims with Pay Date of 3/25/2022

38.88DD 14 Full Notice Of Public Hearing Times Citizen Times Citizen





1

Lee Gallentine

From: Jeremy Maas <jmaas@gehrkeinc.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2022 9:58 AM
To: Lee Gallentine
Cc: Randy Fahr
Subject: RE: DD 56 - 6830.4

Seeding requirement is fine. Bid item is good to use.  
Straw waddles. Install 4.00 per ft. If removal is needed add additional 2.00 ft. 
Due to frost yet and safety of livestock I think we better use waddles.9 inch. 
I'll email you cnty permit tonight. 
Tile hookup bid price is ok as long as we do not go over 20 ft per repair/hook up. 
If we encounter a parallel tile issue we will have to discuss how to repair it at that time in the field.  
Let me know your thoughts. 
Jeremy  
 
 
On Mar 3, 2022 9:41 AM, Jeremy Maas <jmaas@gehrkeinc.com> wrote: 
I will call you in a couple hours. It's easier then trying to email out here. Phone doesn't work all the time. Sorry.   
 
 
On Mar 3, 2022 7:17 AM, Lee Gallentine <LGallentine@cgaconsultants.com> wrote: 
Jeremy, 
Thanks for responding to me about that.  Yesterday I mentioned to the District Trustees about the use of Class III and a 
reduction in pipe price.  They had no comment either way.  I also told them that I would be drafting a change order to 
formalize that.  I would like to incorporate the items in yellow highlight on the attached preconstruction meeting 
minutes in that same change order.  Could you get me pricing on those items ASAP? 
Thanks, 
  
Lee O. Gallentine, PLS & PE 
Vice President 
  

 
  
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. (CGA) 
739 Park Avenue 
Ackley, Iowa 50601 
  
Office:641-847-3273 
Mobile: 515-689-5339 
lgallentine@cgaconsultants.com 
www.cgaconsultants.com 
  

This document was created by an application that isn’t licensed to use novaPDF.
Purchase a license to generate PDF files without this notice.

http://www.novapdf.com/


1

Lee Gallentine

From: Jeremy Maas <jmaas@gehrkeinc.com>
Sent: Monday, February 21, 2022 5:41 PM
To: Lee Gallentine
Cc: Jim.Sweeney@ForterraBP.com; Randy Fahr
Subject: FW: Hardin DD56 48" RCP Analysis
Attachments: Hardin DD56 Pipe Analysis.pdf

 
 

From: Jim Sweeney <Jim.Sweeney@forterrabp.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 21, 2022 4:13 PM 
To: Jeremy Maas <jmaas@gehrkeinc.com>; Randy Fahr <rfahr@gehrkeinc.com> 
Subject: Hardin DD56 48" RCP Analysis 
 
Please forward to Lee.  
 

From: Brandon Christiansen <Brandon.Christiansen@forterrabp.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, December 8, 2021 3:12 PM 
To: Jim Sweeney <Jim.Sweeney@forterrabp.com> 
Subject: Hardin DD56 48" RCP Analysis 
 
Jim, 
 
I have attached the analysis for 48” RCP installed with type B bedding (SUDAS SW103 type F3) which is a 7ft wide 
trench, rock to the springline.  The cutoff point is 17ft for class 3.  Based on the plans, it appears the entire job can be 
installed with class 3 pipe except for the deep fill portion from station 8+00 to 21+00.  That 1300ft would need to be 
class 4. 
 
Thanks, 
 

 
 
Brandon W. Christiansen, P.E. 
Sales Engineer 
525 South 11th Street 
West Des Moines, IA  50265 
T 515.223.8761 C 515.250.7892 
brandon.christiansen@forterrabp.com 
forterrabp.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This document was created by an application that isn’t licensed to use novaPDF.
Purchase a license to generate PDF files without this notice.

http://www.novapdf.com/


Three Edge Bearing Analysis  - Results

Project Title: Hardin County DD56
Project Location: Hardin County, IA

Contract Number:

Consultant: CGA
Contractor: Gehrke

Analyzed By: BWC
Country: US

D-LOAD REQUIREMENTS FOR A 48 in.  DIAMETER CIRCULAR PIPE

   Inner Diameter (in.)
   Wall 'B' Thickness (in.)

48
5.000

   Minimum Depth of Fill (ft)
   Maximum Depth of Fill (ft)
   Soil Density (lb/cu. ft)
   Installation Type
       Trench Width (ft)
       Soil Lateral Pressure/Friction Term (kµ')
   Parameters to compute Transition Width
       Positive Projection Ratio
       Soil Lateral Pressure Ratio
       Soil Lateral Pressure/Friction Term (kµ)
       Soil Lateral Fraction (m)
       Settlement Ratio

5.00
25.00
120.0

Trench
7.00

0.1300

0.50
0.33

0.1000
0.50
0.70

   Live Load

   No Surcharge Load

AASHTO HS-SERIES (HS-20)
Single Axle Load = 32(kips), Double Axle - Load per Axle = 24(kips), Space = 4(ft)

Default I.F. per AASHTO Used.

   Factor of Safety on 0.01 Inch Crack D-Load (Earth,Live)
   Factor of Safety on Ultimate Earth and Live Load (ASTM C 76)
       DL.01 Less Than or Equal To 2000 lbs/ft/ft
       DL.01 Greater Than or Equal To 3000 lbs/ft/ft
       DL.01 Between 2000 and 3000 lbs/ft/ft

1.00  1.00

1.50
1.25

Interpolated

PIPE DATA

INSTALLATION CONDITIONS

ADDITIONAL LOADS

FACTOR OF SAFETY

Alternative: 48 RCP

Date: 08-Dec-21
Units: English Comply To: ASTM (AASHTO

Project Description

Page 1 of  4Date Printed : 12-08-2021 PipePac Version 3 Copyright © 1996-2003 OCPA, CCPA, ACPA



Pipe 
Depth

 Live
 Load
 (lb/ft)

 Surch
 Load
 (lb/ft)

 Total
 Load
 (lb/ft)

 Required D-Load
 0.01 in.
 (lb/ft/ft)

          Earth Load
 Arching >Trans     Load
 Factor                   (lb/ft)

D-LOAD REQUIREMENTS FOR A 48 in.  DIAMETER CIRCULAR PIPE

Selected Depth: 25 ft. (closest pipe depth : 25 ft)
Reinforced Pipe Classes for 0.01 in. crack per ASTM C76 (lb/ft/ft):

CL I <= 800; CL II <= 1000; CL III <= 1350; CL IV <= 2000; Class V <= 3000

Results of Analysis for Bedding Type B

 Bedding
 Factor
   DL         

5.00 1.11 Y 3222 823 0 4045 2.28 444 (CL-I)

6.00 1.14 Y 3950 672 0 4622 2.26 511 (CL-I)

7.00 1.16 Y 4709 560 0 5269 2.25 586 (CL-I)

8.00 1.19 Y 5500 474 0 5974 2.24 667 (CL-I)

9.00 1.21 Y 6325 406 0 6731 2.23 755 (CL-I)

10.00 1.21 N 7016 352 0 7368 2.19 840 (CL-II)

11.00 1.19 N 7585 308 0 7893 2.14 921 (CL-II)

12.00 1.17 N 8133 272 0 8405 2.12 992 (CL-II)

13.00 1.15 N 8661 242 0 8903 2.10 1058 (CL-III)

14.00 1.13 N 9170 217 0 9387 2.09 1123 (CL-III)

15.00 1.11 N 9660 195 0 9855 2.08 1186 (CL-III)

16.00 1.09 N 10133 177 0 10309 2.07 1247 (CL-III)

17.00 1.07 N 10588 161 0 10748 2.06 1305 (CL-III)

18.00 1.06 N 11026 147 0 11173 2.05 1361 (CL-IV)

19.00 1.04 N 11449 135 0 11584 2.05 1416 (CL-IV)

20.00 1.02 N 11856 124 0 11980 2.04 1468 (CL-IV)

21.00 1.01 N 12248 114 0 12363 2.03 1519 (CL-IV)

22.00 0.99 N 12626 106 0 12732 2.03 1568 (CL-IV)

23.00 0.97 N 12991 98 0 13089 2.02 1616 (CL-IV)

24.00 0.96 N 13342 92 0 13433 2.02 1662 (CL-IV)

25.00 0.94 N 13680 86 0 13765 2.02 1706 (CL-IV)

Page 2 of  4Date Printed : 12-08-2021 PipePac Version 3 Copyright © 1996-2003 OCPA, CCPA, ACPA



Pipe Depth – The height of cover from the top of the pipe to the soil surface, m (ft).

Earth Load 

Arching Factor – The ratio of the design soil load on the pipe to the load from the prism of soil immediately above 
the pipe (prism load).  By multiplying the soil prism load by the Arching Factor, the Earth Load on the pipe will be 
determined.  The Arching Factor is constant for Standard Installations in the positive projecting condition, but 
variable for all other bedding and installation conditions.

>Trans -  (Applicable for Trench and Negative Projecting Conditions only) – When a trench or negative projecting 
design is performed, the soil load above the pipe may or may not be reduced by frictional forces between the insitu 
and placed soils, depending on the depth and width of the trench.  A symbol of “Y” is shown when the trench width 
exceeds the width at which frictional forces reduce the soil load on the pipe (Yes, the transition width has been 
exceeded, and the positive projecting design governs).  A symbol of “N” is shown if frictional forces reduce the 
load on the pipe (No, the transition width has not been exceeded).

Load – The load in kN/m (lbs/ft) imposed on the pipe from the soil.

Live Load – The load on the pipe resulting from a dynamic load at the surface, kN/m (lbs/ft).

Surcharge Load – The load in kN/m (lbs/ft) imposed on the pipe from surcharge loads such as buildings, stationary 
equipment, etc. on the soil surface above the pipe.

Total Load – The summation of all the loads on the pipe.  This would include when applicable; Earth Load + 
Surcharge Load + Live Load + Fluid Load.  

Note: Since the internal fluid load for a pipe is constant regardless of fill height it is not listed in the table.  When 
the user chooses to consider fluid load, it is written below the table and included in the total load.

Bedding Factor

DL – The dead load bedding factor applied to the pipe at that depth.  The higher the bedding factor, the greater the 
support that is given to the pipe by the surrounding soil.  This factor is divided by the Total Load for the B, C, and 
D beddings only.

LL – The live load bedding factor applied to the pipe at that depth.  The live load bedding factor accounts for 
concentrated loads resulting from live loads over pipe with shallow cover.  For the Type 1, 2, 3, 4 and Jacking 
Installations the Live Load is divided by the lower of this value or the DL value, and all other loads are summed up 
and divided by the DL value. 

Required D-Load 0.3mm (0.01 in) – The load the pipe is required to support in the three-edge bearing test with a 
crack equal to or less than 0.3 mm (0.01 in) which equates to the maximum stress induced on the pipe in the 
installed condition.  The load is given in kN (lbs) per m (ft) length of pipe per mm (ft) of diameter (or span for 
noncircular pipe).

Required TEB-Load Ultimate – The load that the pipe is required to be able to support in the three-edge bearing test 
prior to failure.  The load is given in kN (lbs) per m (ft) length of pipe.

Pipe Analysis Report

Page 3 of  4Date Printed : 12-08-2021 PipePac Version 3 Copyright © 1996-2003 OCPA, CCPA, ACPA



LIABILITY AGREEMENT

The successful application and use of this software product is dependent on the application 
of skilled engineering judgement supplied by the user and/or their consultant. The user of 
this software must select input values suitable to describe their specific engineering 
situation. The information presented in the computer output is for review, interpretation 
application, and approval by a qualified engineer who must assume full responsibility for 
verifying that all output is appropriate and correct.

ANY IMPLIED OR EXPRESS WARRANTIES COVERING THIS SOFTWARE 
PROGRAM OR USER MANUAL INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE 
EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED.

GIFFELS ASSOCIATES LIMITED, the ONTARIO CONCRETE PIPE ASSOCIATION, 
the CANADIAN CONCRETE PIPE ASSOCIATION, the AMERICAN CONCRETE PIPE 
ASSOCIATION and TUBÉCON INC. shall not be held liable for any special, incidental, 
consequential, indirect or other similar damages resulting from the use of this software.

Use of this program consitutes acceptance of this liability agreement by the user.

Page 4 of  4Date Printed : 12-08-2021 PipePac Version 3 Copyright © 1996-2003 OCPA, CCPA, ACPA





Item Estimated Unit Extended
No. Description Quantity Unit Price Price

1* ** 48” Ø RCP Tile (Class IV) 3,534 LF $193.50 $683,829.00
2* 48” Ø CMP Tile Outlet 40 LF $196.00 $7,840.00
3* 72” Junction Structure 2 EA $7,790.00 $15,580.00

4* ** Concrete Collar or Factory Fitting 3 EA $350.00 $1,050.00
5* ** Private Tile Connection (up to 20' of tile each) 10 EA $535.00 $5,350.00

6* 12” Ø Hickenbottom Intake 0 EA $1,500.00 $0.00
7* Rip-Rap 50 TN $41.00 $2,050.00
8* Tile Removal 30 LF $11.00 $330.00
9* Fences 1 LS $1,300.00 $1,300.00

10* Road Ditch Grading 2 STA $725.00 $1,450.00
11* Outlet Shaping 1 LS $725.00 $725.00
12* Dewatering 1 LS $22,000.00 $22,000.00
13* Exploratory Excavation 2 HR $585.00 $1,170.00
14* Bonding 0 LS $8,000.00 $0.00
15** Seeding 1 LS $7,000.00 $7,000.00
16 Seeding Warranty 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00
17* 36” Ø SW-512 Concrete Intake w/ Type 5 Casting 1 EA $2,550.00 $2,550.00
18* 24” Ø RCP Tile 100 LF $95.00 $9,500.00
19** 48” Ø RCP Tile (Class III) 1,100 LF $187.50 $206,250.00
20** 9" Straw Waddle (installation and removal) 600 LF $6.00 $3,600.00

$972,574.00

Item Estimated Unit Extended
No. Description Quantity Unit Price Price

2ADD* CCTV Inspection of Tile 0 LF $5.00 $0.00
3ADD* Trench Compaction 0 STA $500.00 $0.00
4ADD* Mandrel and CCTV Access Point 4 EA $6,375.00 $25,500.00
5ADD* Additional 2’ of Installation Depth 4,674 LF $1.10 $5,141.40

$30,641.40

$1,003,215.40

* - Approved as part of Change Order #1
** - Approved as part of Change Order #2

DD 56 BASE BID

REVISED DD 56 BASE BID TOTAL (BID ITEMS 1 THROUGH 20)

DD 56 ADD ALTERNATE BID

 REVISED DD 56 ADD ALTERNATE TOTAL (BID ITEMS 1DD THROUGH 5ADD

TOTAL REVISED CONTRACT











































































Hardin County

Work Order #: WO00000326

Date: 3/18/2022

Drainage District: DDs\Big 4 Main (51193)

Drainage Work Order Request For Repair

Location/GIS:

Contact Email:

(641) 751-7365Contact Phone:

DD Big 4 -- Mike Inks reports a Beaver dam nearing compleƟon on parcel  
#892233300002. Dam is roughly 600 yards North of HWY D25 Bridge. There is a  
lot of beaver acƟvity in area.  

Description:

Repair labor, materials and equipment:__________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

Repaired By:

Please reference work order # and send statement for services to: Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Drainage Clerk
1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627
Phone (641) 939-8111
Fax (641) 939-8245

____________________________________________________________________________________________________For Office Use Only

Approved: ____________________________________________________________________________Date: ___________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________Date: ___________________________________________

Sec-Twp-Rge: 33-89-22 Qtr Sec:

Mike InksRequested By:

89-22-33-300-002

Landowner (if different):










	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Body (contractor and engr signed)
	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Unsigned
	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Body
	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Unsigned
	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Contractor E-mail
	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Supplier PE Design Info
	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Supplier PE Design Info
	Hardin DD56 Pipe Analysis

	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Landowner Pasture Seeding
	pasture seed

	6830.4 - Change Order #2 - Revised Unit Prices
	CHANGE ORDER #2 CONTRACT






